
 Michigan Health Endowment Fund 
 201 Townsend Street, Lansing, MI 48913 

 
Board of Directors 
Robert Fowler 
Chairperson 

Lynn Alexander 
Vice Chairperson 

Timothy Damschroder 
Treasurer 

Cindy Estrada 
Secretary 

Susan Jandernoa 

Keith Pretty 

James Murray 

Marge Robinson 

Michael Williams 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Michigan Health Endowment Fund Board Meeting 

December 17, 2014 

9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Radisson Hotel, 111, N. Grand Avenue, Lansing, Michigan 48933 

Capitol Rooms 1 and 2 

1



Michigan Health Endowment Fund Board Meeting 
December 17, 2014 

Radisson Hotel, 111 N. Grand Avenue, Lansing, Michigan, 48933 
Capitol rooms 1 and 2 

 
The mission of the Michigan Health Endowment Fund is to improve the health of 

Michigan residents and reduce the cost of health care with special emphasis on the health 
and wellness of children and seniors.  

 
8:30 a.m. – 9:00 a.m.   Breakfast 
 
9:00 a.m. – 9:05 a.m.  Opening—Rob Fowler 

• Call to order of regular Board Meeting 
• Roll call 
• Approval of agenda, page 2 
• Approval of Nov. 21, 2014 minutes, page 23 
• Public Act 4 of 2014, page 4 
• Bylaws, page 11 
• Open Meetings Rules and Procedures, page 18 

 
 
9:05 a.m. – 9:10 a.m.  Public Comment 

Public Comment:  Five-minute limitation on a single representative 
of an organization; three minutes for individuals representing 
themselves 

 
9:10 a.m.   Committee Reports 
 
9:10 a.m. – 9:20 a.m.  Executive and Compensation Committee:  Rob Fowler 

• Financial report, page 26 
• 2014 Allocation to Spendable Account Resolution, page 28 
• Workplan, page 29 

 
9:20 a.m. – 9:25 a.m.  CEO Recruitment Committee:  Lynn Alexander 

 
9:25 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.  Audit Committee:  Keith Pretty 

 
9:30 a.m. – 9:45 a.m.  Governance Committee:  Michael Williams 

 
9:45 a.m. – 10: 45 a.m.  Grantmaking Committee:  Sue Jandernoa 

• 2014 Pilot Grantmaking Applications 
 Michigan Primary Care Association  
 Michigan Alliance of Boys and Girls Clubs 
 Michigan Association of United Ways 
 Michigan State Alliance of YMCAs 

2



 Michigan Association for Local Public Health 
 Michigan Fitness Foundation 
 Michigan Association of Community Mental Health 

Boards 
 
10:45 a.m. – 10:50 a.m. Investment Committee:  Tim Damschroder 

• Huntington statement, page 36 
 
10:50 a.m. – 10:55 a.m. Closed Session—Rob Fowler 

• Announce closed session.  Board may take action following 
closed session, if necessary. 

 
Process for closed session 
1. State reasons for Closed Session from statute. 

Legal basis:  To consider the hiring, dismissal, suspension, 
or disciplining of Board members or employees or agents 
of the Fund 
This session:  Discuss search process for the position of 
Chief Executive Officer. 

2. Take a roll-call vote to go into Closed Session (requires 
six affirmative votes); results of vote must be announced 

3. Excuse the public from the room 
4. Minutes must be taken for the Closed Session.  

 
10:55 a.m. – 11:55 a.m. Staff Recruitment 

• CEO Recruitment Committee:  Rob Fowler and Lynn 
Alexander 

 
 
11:55 a.m.    Reconvene Open Meeting 
 

Next Steps—Rob Fowler 
• Any action needed coming out of the closed session 
• Upcoming Board meetings 

 
12:00 p.m.   Adjourn 
 
 

3



STATE OF MICHIGAN
97TH LEGISLATURE

REGULAR SESSION OF 2013

Introduced by Senators Hune and Smith

ENROLLED SENATE BILL No. 61
AN ACT to amend 1980 PA 350, entitled “An act to provide for the incorporation of nonprofit health care corporations; 

to provide their rights, powers, and immunities; to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state officers relative to 
the exercise of those rights, powers, and immunities; to prescribe certain conditions for the transaction of business by 
those corporations in this state; to define the relationship of health care providers to nonprofit health care corporations 
and to specify their rights, powers, and immunities with respect thereto; to provide for a Michigan caring program; to 
provide for the regulation and supervision of nonprofit health care corporations by the commissioner of insurance; to 
prescribe powers and duties of certain other state officers with respect to the regulation and supervision of nonprofit 
health care corporations; to provide for the imposition of a regulatory fee; to regulate the merger or consolidation of 
certain corporations; to prescribe an expeditious and effective procedure for the maintenance and conduct of certain 
administrative appeals relative to provider class plans; to provide for certain administrative hearings relative to rates 
for health care benefits; to provide for certain causes of action; to prescribe penalties and to provide civil fines for 
violations of this act; and to repeal certain acts and parts of acts,” by amending the title and sections 218, 401e, and 414b 
(MCL 550.1218, 550.1401e, and 550.1414b), the title as amended by 1994 PA 169, section 218 as added by 2002 PA 559, 
section 401e as added by 1996 PA 516, and section 414b as added by 2006 PA 413, and by adding sections 201a, 220, 400, 
401m, 410b, 501c, and 620 and part 6A.

The People of the State of Michigan enact:

TITLE

An act to provide for the incorporation of nonprofit health care corporations; to provide their rights, powers, and 
immunities; to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state officers relative to the exercise of those rights, powers, 
and immunities; to prescribe certain conditions for the transaction of business by those corporations in this state; to 
define the relationship of health care providers to nonprofit health care corporations and to specify their rights, powers, 
and immunities with respect thereto; to provide for a Michigan caring program; to provide for the regulation and 
supervision of nonprofit health care corporations by the commissioner of insurance; to prescribe powers and duties of 
certain other state officers with respect to the regulation and supervision of nonprofit health care corporations; to 
provide for the imposition of a regulatory fee; to regulate the merger or consolidation of certain corporations; to 
prescribe an expeditious and effective procedure for the maintenance and conduct of certain administrative appeals 
relative to provider class plans; to provide for certain administrative hearings relative to rates for health care benefits; 
to provide for the creation of and the powers and duties of certain nonprofit corporations for the purpose of receiving 
and administering funds for the public welfare; to provide for certain causes of action; to prescribe penalties and to 
provide civil fines for violations of this act; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

Sec. 201a. Notwithstanding section 201, a health care corporation shall not be formed in this state on or after 
January 1, 2014.

(3)

ESB 61

Act No. 4
Public Acts of 2013

Approved by the Governor
March 18, 2013

Filed with the Secretary of State
March 18, 2013

EFFECTIVE DATE: March 18, 2013

4



2
ESB 61

Sec. 218. A health care corporation shall not do any of the following:

(a) Take any action to change its nonprofit status.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in section 220, dissolve, merge, consolidate, mutualize, or take any other action 
that results in a change in direct or indirect control of the health care corporation or sell, transfer, lease, exchange, 
option, or convey assets that results in a change in direct or indirect control of the health care corporation.

Sec. 220. (1) Notwithstanding any provision of this act to the contrary, a health care corporation may establish, own, 
operate, and merge with a nonprofit mutual disability insurer formed under chapter 58 of the insurance code of 1956, 
1956 PA 218, MCL 500.5800 to 500.5840. The surviving entity of a merger described in this subsection is the nonprofit 
mutual disability insurer. A merger described in this subsection is exempt from the application of sections 1311 to 1319 
of the insurance code of 1956, 1956 PA 218, MCL 500.1311 to 500.1319.

(2) The merger of a health care corporation with a nonprofit mutual disability insurer is effective upon completion 
of both of the following:

(a) The adoption of a plan of merger by the majority of the boards of directors of both the health care corporation 
and the nonprofit mutual disability insurer. The health care corporation shall include in the plan of merger that beginning 
in April of the first full calendar year after the adoption of the plan of merger the surviving entity of a merger described 
in subsection (1) shall use its best efforts to make annual social mission contributions in an aggregate amount of up to 
$1,560,000,000.00 over a period of up to 18 years beginning in April of the first full calendar year after the adoption of 
the plan of merger to a nonprofit corporation created under part 6A. If adopted, the boards of directors shall submit the 
plan of merger to the commissioner for his or her consideration as provided in subdivision (b). A nonprofit mutual 
disability insurer is considered to be making its best effort under this subdivision if it makes the annual social mission 
contribution to a nonprofit corporation created in part 6A when the nonprofit mutual disability insurer’s surplus is at 
least 375% of the authorized control level under risk-based capital requirements.

(b) The approval of the plan of merger by the commissioner. The commissioner shall make a determination to 
approve or disapprove a plan of merger within 90 days of receipt of the plan, and the commissioner shall not unreasonably 
withhold approval of a plan of merger submitted under subdivision (a).

(3) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act to the contrary, the directors of a health care corporation may 
serve as incorporators of the corporate body of, directors of, or officers of the nonprofit mutual disability insurer formed 
through a merger described in subsection (1).

(4) A merger described in subsection (1) is the dissolution of the health care corporation, and the surviving nonprofit 
mutual disability insurer assumes the performance of all contracts and policies of the merged health care corporation 
that exist on the date of the merger, including the participating hospital agreement, and its definition of certificate 
which excludes as covered services benefits provided pursuant to automobile no-fault or worker’s compensation 
coverage, and all related contract obligations that result from orders relating to hospital provider class plans that are 
issued by the commissioner after July 1, 2012. However, the officers of a health care corporation may perform any act 
or acts necessary to close the affairs of the merged health care corporation after the date of the merger.

(5) Notwithstanding anything in this act to the contrary, if the merger of a health care corporation and a nonprofit 
mutual disability insurer becomes effective as described in subsection (2), the property of the health care corporation is 
subject to the collection of general ad valorem taxes and applicable specific taxes under the general property tax act, 
1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155, beginning December 31, 2013. As provided in section 201, the property of a health 
care corporation is exempt from taxation before December 31, 2013. This act does not confer an exemption from 
taxation on a nonprofit mutual disability insurer that merges with a health care corporation.

Sec. 400. (1) Notwithstanding any provision of this act to the contrary, this section applies to the use of a most 
favored nation clause in a provider contract on and after February 1, 2013.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), beginning February 1, 2013, a health care corporation shall not use a most favored 
nation clause in any provider contract, including a provider contract in effect on February 1, 2013, unless the most 
favored nation clause has been filed with and approved by the commissioner. Subject to subsection (3), beginning 
February 1, 2013, a health care corporation shall not enforce a most favored nation clause in any provider contract 
without the prior approval of the commissioner.

(3) Beginning January 1, 2014, a health care corporation shall not use a most favored nation clause in any provider 
contract, including a provider contract in effect on January 1, 2014.

(4) As used in this section, “most favored nation clause” means a clause that does any of the following:

(a) Prohibits, or grants a contracting health care corporation an option to prohibit, a provider from contracting with 
another party to provide health care services at a lower rate than the payment or reimbursement rate specified in the 
contract with the health care corporation.

5



3
ESB 61

(b) Requires, or grants a contracting health care corporation an option to require, a provider to accept a lower 
payment or reimbursement rate if the provider agrees to provide health care services to any other party at a lower rate 
than the payment or reimbursement rate specified in the contract with the health care corporation.

(c) Requires, or grants a contracting health care corporation an option to require, termination or renegotiation of an 
existing provider contract if a provider agrees to provide health care services to any other party at a lower rate than 
the payment or reimbursement rate specified in the contract with the health care corporation.

(d) Requires a provider to disclose, to the health care corporation or its designee, the provider’s contractual payment 
or reimbursement rates with other parties.

Sec. 401e. (1) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a health care corporation that has issued a nongroup 
certificate shall renew or continue in force the certificate at the option of the individual.

(2) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a health care corporation that has issued a group certificate shall 
renew or continue in force the certificate at the option of the sponsor of the plan.

(3) Guaranteed renewal is not required in cases of fraud, intentional misrepresentation of material fact, lack of 
payment, if the health care corporation no longer offers that particular type of coverage in the market, or if the 
individual or group moves outside the service area.

(4) A health care corporation shall not discontinue offering a particular plan or product in the nongroup or group 
market unless the health care corporation does all of the following:

(a) Provides notice to the commissioner and to each covered individual or group, as applicable, provided coverage 
under the plan or product of the discontinuation at least 90 days before the date of the discontinuation.

(b) Offers to each covered individual or group, as applicable, provided coverage under the plan or product the option 
to purchase any other plan or product currently being offered in the nongroup market or group market, as applicable, 
by that health care corporation without excluding or limiting coverage for a preexisting condition or providing a waiting 
period.

(c) Acts uniformly without regard to any health status factor of enrolled individuals or individuals who may become 
eligible for coverage in making the determination to discontinue coverage and in offering other plans or products.

(5) A health care corporation shall not discontinue offering all coverage in the nongroup or group market unless the 
health care corporation does all of the following:

(a) Provides notice to the commissioner and to each covered individual or group, as applicable, of the discontinuation 
at least 180 days before the date of the expiration of coverage.

(b) Discontinues all health benefit plans issued in the nongroup or group market from which the health care 
corporation withdrew and, except as allowed under subsection (6), does not renew coverage under those plans.

(6) If a health care corporation discontinues coverage under subsection (5), the health care corporation shall not 
provide for the issuance of any health benefit plans in the nongroup or group market from which the health care 
corporation withdrew during the 5-year period beginning on the date of the discontinuation of the last plan not renewed 
under that subsection.

Sec. 401m. Until January 1, 2014, a health care corporation established, maintained, or operating in this state shall 
offer health care benefits to all residents of this state regardless of health status.

Sec. 410b. Notwithstanding section 410a(8), for a certificate delivered, issued for delivery, or renewed in this state 
on or after January 1, 2014, the premium for a group conversion certificate under section 410a shall be determined only 
by using the rating factors set forth in section 3474a of the insurance code of 1956, 1956 PA 218, MCL 500.3474a.

Sec. 414b. (1) A health care corporation may offer group wellness coverage. Wellness coverage may provide for an 
appropriate rebate or reduction in premiums or for reduced copayments, coinsurance, or deductibles, or a combination 
of these incentives, for participation in any health behavior wellness, maintenance, or improvement program offered by 
the employer. The employer shall provide evidence of demonstrative maintenance or improvement of the members’ 
health behaviors as determined by assessments of agreed-upon health status indicators between the employer and the 
health care corporation. Any rebate or premium provided by the health care corporation is presumed to be appropriate 
unless credible data demonstrate otherwise, but shall not exceed 30% of paid premiums, unless otherwise approved by 
the commissioner. A health care corporation shall make available to employers all wellness coverage plans that it 
markets to employers in this state.

(2) A health care corporation may offer nongroup wellness coverage. Wellness coverage may provide for an 
appropriate rebate or reduction in premiums or for reduced copayments, coinsurance, or deductibles, or a combination 
of these incentives, for participation in any health behavior wellness, maintenance, or improvement program approved 
by the health care corporation. The member shall provide evidence of demonstrative maintenance or improvement of 
the individual’s or family’s health behaviors as determined by assessments of agreed-upon health status indicators 

6



4
ESB 61

between the member and the health care corporation. Any rebate of premium provided by the health care corporation 
is presumed to be appropriate unless credible data demonstrate otherwise, but shall not exceed 30% of paid premiums, 
unless otherwise approved by the commissioner. A health care corporation shall make available to individuals all 
wellness coverage plans that it markets to individuals in this state.

(3) A health care corporation is not required to continue any health behavior wellness, maintenance, or improvement 
program or to continue any incentive associated with a health behavior wellness, maintenance, or improvement program.

Sec. 501c. Beginning January 1, 2014, a health care corporation shall establish and maintain a provider network that, 
at a minimum, satisfies any network adequacy requirements imposed by the commissioner pursuant to federal law.

Sec. 620. (1) Notwithstanding any provision of this act to the contrary, a certificate delivered, issued for delivery, or 
renewed in this state on or after January 1, 2014 by a health care corporation is subject to the policy and certificate 
issuance and rate filing requirements of the insurance code of 1956, 1956 PA 218, MCL 500.100 to 500.8302, including 
the rating factor requirements of section 3474a of the insurance code of 1956, 1956 PA 218, MCL 500.3474a.

(2) For a certificate delivered, issued for delivery, or renewed in this state on or after January 1, 2014, subject to the 
prior approval of the commissioner, a health care corporation may establish reasonable open enrollment periods.

(3) The commissioner shall establish minimum standards for the frequency and duration of open enrollment periods 
established under subsection (2). The commissioner shall uniformly apply the minimum standards for the frequency and 
duration of open enrollment periods established under this subsection to all health care corporations.

(4) A health care corporation offering coverage during an open enrollment period established under subsection (2) 
shall not deny or condition the issuance or effectiveness of a certificate and shall not discriminate in the pricing of the 
certificate on the basis of health status, claims experience, receipt of health care, or medical condition.

PART 6A

HEALTH ENDOWMENT FUND CORPORATIONS

Sec. 651. As used in this part:

(a) “Board” means the board of a health endowment fund corporation incorporated under this part.

(b) “Executive director” means the executive director of a fund appointed by the board.

(c) “Fund” means a health endowment fund corporation organized as a nonprofit corporation under section 653.

Sec. 652. (1) A health endowment fund corporation shall not be incorporated in this state except under this part.

(2) A board shall adopt a conflict of interest policy. A board member with a direct or indirect interest in any matter 
before the fund shall disclose the member’s interest to the board before the board takes any action on the matter. The 
board shall record the member’s disclosure in the minutes of the board meeting. If a board member or a member of his 
or her immediate family, organizationally or individually, would derive a direct and specific benefit from a decision of 
the board, that member shall recuse himself or herself from the discussion and the vote on the issue.

(3) Subject to this subsection, the governor shall appoint the members of a board with the advice and consent of the 
senate. An individual who is an employee, officer, or board member of a health care corporation; a lobbyist affiliated 
with a health care corporation; or an employee of a health insurer, health care provider, or third party administrator is 
not eligible to be appointed and shall not be appointed to a board under this subsection. On or before the expiration of 
60 days after the incorporation of a fund under section 653, the governor shall appoint the following initial members of 
the board with the advice and consent of the senate:

(a) One member from a list of 3 or more individuals recommended by the senate majority leader.

(b) One member from a list of 3 or more individuals recommended by the speaker of the house of representatives.

(c) One member representing the interests of minor children.

(d) One member representing the interests of senior citizens.

(e) Two members of the general public.

(f) One member representing the business community.

(g) One member from a list of 3 or more individuals recommended by the house minority leader.

(h) One member from a list of 3 or more individuals recommended by the senate minority leader.

(4) A vacancy on a board shall be filled in the same manner as the initial appointment under subsection (3). Except 
as otherwise provided in this subsection, a board member shall be appointed for a term of 4 years or until a successor 
is appointed, whichever is later. For the initial members appointed under subsection (3), 3 members shall be appointed 
for 2-year terms, 3 members shall be appointed for 3-year terms, and 3 members shall be appointed for 4-year terms.

7



5
ESB 61

(5) Six members of a board constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the board. An 
affirmative vote of 5 board members is necessary for official action of a board.

(6) The business that a board may perform shall be conducted at a meeting of the board that is held in this state, is 
open to the public, and is held in a place that is available to the general public. However, a board may establish 
reasonable rules and regulations to minimize disruption of a meeting of the board. At least 10 days and not more than 
60 days before a meeting, a board shall provide public notice of its meeting at its principal office and on its internet 
website. A board shall include in the public notice of its meeting the address where board minutes required under 
subsection (7) may be inspected by the public. A board may meet in a closed session for any of the following purposes:

(a) To consider the hiring, dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of board members or employees or agents of the 
fund.

(b) To consult with its attorney.

(c) To comply with state or federal law, rules, or regulations regarding privacy or confidentiality.

(7) A board shall keep minutes of each meeting. Board minutes shall be open to public inspection, and the board shall 
make the minutes available at the address designated on the public notice of its meeting under subsection (6). A board 
shall make copies of the minutes available to the public at the reasonable estimated cost for printing and copying. 
A board shall include all of the following in its board minutes:

(a) The date, time, and place of the meeting.

(b) Board members who are present and absent.

(c) Board decisions made at a meeting open to the public.

(d) All roll call votes taken at the meeting.

(8) Board members shall serve without compensation. However, board members may be reimbursed for their actual 
and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties as board members.

Sec. 653. (1) A charitable purpose nonprofit corporation may be incorporated on a nonstock, directorship basis, under 
the nonprofit corporation act, 1982 PA 162, MCL 450.2101 to 450.3192 consistent with this part and, if incorporated 
under this section, shall be organized to receive and administer funds for the public welfare. The articles of incorporation 
must include the word “Michigan” and the phrase “health endowment fund” in the name of the fund. As soon as 
practicable after the incorporation of a fund under this subsection, the fund shall apply for and make its best effort to 
obtain tax-exempt status under section 501(c)(3) of the internal revenue code, 26 USC 501.

(2) The articles of incorporation of a fund must provide that the fund is organized for the following purposes:

(a) Supporting efforts that improve the quality of health care while reducing costs to residents of this state.

(b) Benefitting the health and wellness of minor children and seniors throughout this state with a significant focus 
in the following areas:

(i) Access to prenatal care and reduction of infant mortality rates.

(ii) Health services for foster and adopted children.

(iii) Access to healthy food.

(iv) Wellness programs and fitness programs.

(v) Access to mental health services.

(vi) Technology enhancements.

(vii) Health-related transportation needs.

(viii) Foodborne illness prevention.

(c) Awarding grants for a term not exceeding 3 years in duration for projects that will promote the purposes of the 
fund.

(d) Subsidizing the cost of individual medigap coverage to medicare-eligible individuals in this state who demonstrate 
a financial need in order to be able to purchase individual medigap coverage.

(3) The board shall establish a comprehensive and competitive process to award grants.

(4) The nonprofit corporation act, 1982 PA 162, MCL 450.2101 to 450.3192, applies to a fund. If a provision relating 
to a fund under this part conflicts with other state law, this part controls.

(5) If a fund is eligible to receive social mission contributions under section 220(2), the eligible fund shall implement 
a program to disburse money to subsidize the cost of individual medigap coverage to medicare-eligible individuals in 
this state who demonstrate a financial need in order to be able to purchase individual medigap coverage. The commissioner 
shall develop a means test to be used to determine if a medicare-eligible individual applicant is eligible for the medigap 
coverage subsidy provided for in this subsection and shall submit the test developed to the attorney general for 
approval.

8



6
ESB 61

(6) If a fund is eligible to receive social mission contributions under section 220(2), beginning on the first day of the 
third August after the fund receives its initial social mission contribution, and ending on the thirty-first day of the 
eighth December after the fund receives its initial social mission contribution, the fund shall disburse $120,000,000.00 to 
subsidize the cost of individual medigap coverage purchased by medicare-eligible individuals in this state, subject to 
subsection (5).

(7) A fund is a private, nonprofit corporation organized for charitable purposes and is not a state agency, governmental 
agency, or other political subdivision of this state. Money of a fund is held by the fund for the purposes consistent with 
this part and is not money of this state or a political subdivision of this state and shall not be deposited in the state 
treasury. A member of a board is not a public officer of this state.

Sec. 654. (1) A board shall appoint an executive director to serve as the chief executive officer of the fund. The 
executive director shall serve at the pleasure of the board. The executive director may employ staff and hire consultants 
as necessary with the approval of the board. The board shall determine compensation for the executive director and 
staff employed under this subsection and shall approve contracts under this subsection.

(2) The executive director shall display on the fund internet website information relevant to the public, as defined 
by the board, concerning the fund’s operations and efficiencies, as well as the board’s assessments of those activities.

Sec. 655. (1) Subject to this section, a fund may disburse money contributed to the fund each year, not including any 
interest, earnings, or unrealized gains or losses on those contributions, for the purposes of the fund as described in 
section 653. A fund may expend a portion of the money contributed to the fund in each year following the initial 
contribution to the fund according to the following schedule:

(a) Years 1 through 4, 80%.

(b) Years 5 through 8, 67%.

(c) Years 9 through 12, 60%.

(d) Years 13 through 18, 25%.

(2) On and after the date that the accumulated principal of money held by a fund reaches $750,000,000.00, the fund 
shall maintain that amount for investment to provide an ongoing income to the fund. On and after the date that the 
accumulated principal in the fund reaches $750,000,000.00, the board shall not allow the accumulated principal of the 
fund to fall below $750,000,000.00 due to expenditures made for the purposes of the fund as described in section 653.

(3) A fund may expend money received by the fund from any source in a fiscal year of the fund that is in excess of 
the amount required to maintain the accumulated principal goals as described in subsection (2), not including any 
interest, earnings, or unrealized gains or losses on those funds, on the reasonable administrative costs of the fund and 
for the purposes of the fund as described in this part. The investment of fund money and donations by the fund are 
under the exclusive control and discretion of the fund and are not subject to requirements applicable to public funds.

(4) A fund may invest accumulated principal in the fund only in securities permitted by the laws of this state for the 
investment of assets of life insurance companies, as described in chapter 9 of the insurance code of 1956, 1956 PA 218, 
MCL 500.901 to 500.947.

(5) A fund’s articles of incorporation or bylaws must provide for a system of financial accounting, controls, audits, 
and reports. The board annually shall have an audit of the fund conducted by an independent public accountant firm, 
and the auditor’s audit report and findings shall be submitted to the board. The expense of an audit required under this 
subsection is considered a reasonable administrative cost under subsection (3).

(6) A fund’s articles of incorporation or bylaws must require that the board shall appoint from its members an audit 
committee consisting of no fewer than 3 members and for the audit committee to contract with an independent auditing 
firm to provide an annual financial audit in accordance with applicable auditing standards.

(7) The executive director shall do all of the following:

(a) Review and certify external auditor reports.

(b) Make external auditor reports available to the board and to the general public.

(c) Develop and implement corrective actions to address weaknesses identified in an audit report.

(8) The articles of incorporation or bylaws of a fund must require the fund to keep an accurate accounting of all 
activities, receipts, and expenditures and annually submit to the board, the governor, the senate and house of 
representatives appropriations committees, and the senate and house of representatives standing committees on health 
policy a report regarding those accountings.

(9) A fund and its directors, officers, and employees shall fully cooperate with any investigation conducted by this 
state or a federal agency under its authority under state or federal law, to do any of the following:

(a) Investigate the affairs of the fund.

(b) Examine the assets and records of the fund.

(c) Require periodic reports in relation to the activities undertaken by the fund in compliance with applicable law.

9



7

Enacting section 1. This amendatory act does not take effect unless Senate Bill No. 62 of the 97th Legislature is 
enacted into law.

This act is ordered to take immediate effect.

Secretary of the Senate

Clerk of the House of Representatives

Approved

Governor

10



 

 
200136219.1 44881/170027 

Adopted: March 24, 2014 

BYLAWS 
 

OF 

 

MICHIGAN HEALTH ENDOWMENT FUND 

 

(A Michigan Nonprofit Corporation) 

 

ARTICLE I 

Board of Directors 

Section 1. Directorship.  The Fund is organized upon a directorship basis.  

The property, business and affairs of the Fund will be managed by its Board of Directors. 

Section 2. Number, Qualification and Term of Office.  The Board of 

Directors of this Fund will consist of nine persons.   

The Governor of the State of Michigan shall appoint the members of the board 

with the advice and consent of the Michigan Senate.  An individual who is an employee, 

officer, or board member of a health care corporation; a lobbyist affiliated with a health 

care corporation; or an employee of a health insurer, health care provider, or third party 

administrator is not eligible to be appointed and shall not be appointed to the board.  On 

or before the expiration of 60 days after the incorporation of the Fund, the Governor shall 

appoint the following initial members of the board with the advice and consent of the 

Senate: 

(a) One member from a list of 3 or more individuals recommended by 

the Senate Majority Leader. 

(b) One member from a list of 3 or more individuals recommended by 

the Speaker of the House of Representatives. 

(c) One member representing the interests of minor children. 

(d) One member representing the interests of senior citizens. 

(e) Two members of the general public. 

(f) One member representing the business community. 

(g) One member from a list of 3 or more individuals recommended by 

the House Minority Leader. 

(h) One member from a list of 3 or more individuals recommended by 

the Senate Minority Leader. 

11



 

2 
 

200136219.1 44881/170027 

A vacancy on the board shall be filled in the same manner as the initial 

appointment under this Section 2.  Except as otherwise provided in this section, a board 

member shall be appointed for a term of 4 years or until a successor is appointed, 

whichever is later.  For the initial members appointed under this Section 2, 3 members 

shall be appointed for 2-year terms, 3 members shall be appointed for 3-year terms, and 3 

members shall be appointed for 4-year terms. 

Section 3. Resignation, Removal and Vacancies.  A Director may resign by 

written notice to the Governor.  The resignation will be effective upon its receipt by the 

Governor or a subsequent time as set forth in the notice of resignation.  A Director may 

be removed, either with or without cause, by written direction of the Governor. 

Section 4. General Powers as to Negotiable Paper.  The Board of Directors 

may, from time to time, authorize the making, signature or endorsement of checks, drafts, 

notes and other negotiable paper or other instruments for the payment of money and 

designate the persons who will be authorized to make, sign or endorse the same on behalf 

of the Fund. 

Section 5. Powers as to Other Documents.  All material contracts, 

conveyances and other instruments may be executed on behalf of the Fund by the 

Executive Director, the Chairperson or any Vice Chairperson, and, if necessary, attested 

by the Secretary or the Treasurer. 

Section 6. Compensation.  Directors will serve without compensation but 

may be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred by a Director in the 

performance of his or her official duties as a Board member consistent with policies 

adopted by the Board. 

ARTICLE II 

Meetings 

Section 1. Annual Meeting.  The annual meeting of the Directors of the Fund 

will be held at the principal office of the Fund during the month of January of each year, 

or at any other place and date as designated by the Directors for the purpose of installing 

Directors and electing officers for the ensuing year, presenting to the Directors a copy of 

the Fund’s financial report for the preceding fiscal year and for the transaction of other 

business properly brought before the meeting. 

Section 2. Open Meetings.  The business that the board may perform shall be 

conducted at a meeting of the board that is held in this state, is open to the public, and is 

held in a place that is available to the general public.  However, the board may establish 

reasonable rules and regulations to minimize disruption of a meeting of the board.  At 

least 10 days and not more than 60 days before a meeting, the board shall provide public 

notice of its meeting at its principal office and on its internet website.  The board shall 

include in the public notice of its meeting the address where board minutes may be 

inspected by the public.  The board may meet in a closed session for any of the following 

purposes: 

12



 

3 
 

200136219.1 44881/170027 

(a) To consider the hiring, dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of 

board members or employees or agents of the Fund. 

(b) To consult with its attorney. 

(c) To comply with state or federal law, or regulations regarding 

privacy or confidentiality. 

Section 3. Notice of Meeting.  Except as otherwise provided by these Bylaws 

or by law, and in addition to the public notice described in Section 2 above, written notice 

containing the time and place of all meetings of the Board of Directors will be given 

personally, by mail, or by electronic transmission to each Director not less than ten days 

before a meeting.  Notice by electronic transmission will be deemed to have been given 

when electronically transmitted to the person entitled to the notice or communication in a 

manner authorized by the person.  Notice of a meeting need not state the purpose or 

purposes of the meeting nor the business to be transacted at the meeting.   

 Attendance of a Director at a meeting constitutes a waiver of notice of the 

meeting, except where the Director attends the meeting for the express purpose of 

objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting was not lawfully called 

or convened. 

 

Section 4. Quorum and Voting.  Six members of the Board constitute a 

quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Board.  An affirmative vote of 

5 Board members is necessary for official action of the Board. 

Section 5. Conduct at Meetings.  Meetings of the Directors will be presided 

over by the Chairperson.  The Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Fund or, in their 

absence, a person chosen at the meeting will act as Secretary of the meeting. 

Section 6. Minutes.  The Board shall keep minutes of each meeting.  Board 

minutes shall be open to public inspection, and the Board shall make the minutes 

available at the address designated on the public notice of its meeting under Section 2.  

The Board shall make copies of the minutes available to the public at the reasonable 

estimated cost for printing and copying.  The Board shall include all of the following in 

its Board minutes: 

(a) The date, time, and place of the meeting. 

(b) Board members who are present and absent. 

(c) Board decisions made at a meeting open to the public. 

(d) All roll call votes taken at the meeting. 

Section 7. Participation by Remote Communication.  A Director may 

participate in a meeting of Directors by conference telephone or other means of remote 

communication by which all persons participating in the meeting may communicate with 

13



 

4 
 

200136219.1 44881/170027 

each other.  Participation in a meeting pursuant to this section constitutes presence in 

person at the meeting. 

ARTICLE III 

Officers 

Section 1. Election or Appointment.  The Board of Directors will elect a 

Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson, a Secretary and a Treasurer of the Fund at each annual 

meeting.  The Board will appoint an Executive Director to serve as the chief executive 

officer of the Fund.  The same person may hold any two or more offices, but no officer 

will execute, acknowledge or verify any instrument in more than one capacity.  The 

Directors may also appoint any other officers and agents as they deem necessary for 

accomplishing the purposes of the Fund. 

Section 2. Term of Office.  The term of office of all officers will commence 

upon their election or appointment and will continue until the next annual meeting of the 

Fund and until their respective successors are chosen or until their resignation or removal.  

Any officer may be removed from office at any meeting of the Directors, with or without 

cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then in office, whenever in 

their judgment the best interest of the Fund will be served. 

 An officer may resign by written notice to the Fund.  The resignation will be 

effective upon its receipt by the Fund or at a subsequent time specified in the notice of 

the resignation.   

 

Section 3. Compensation.  Any officer who is an employee of the Fund will 

receive reasonable compensation for his or her services as fixed by the Board of 

Directors. 

Section 4. Chairperson.  The Chairperson will preside over all board meetings 

and will perform such other duties prescribed by the Board of Directors. 

Section 5. Vice Chairperson.  The Vice Chairperson will, in the absence or 

disability of the Chairperson, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the 

Chairperson and will perform any other duties prescribed by the Board of Directors or the 

Chairperson. 

Section 6. The Executive Director.  The Executive Director will be the chief 

executive officer of the Fund and will have general and active management of the 

activities of the Fund.  The Executive Director will see that all orders and resolutions of 

the Board of Directors are carried into effect.  The Executive Director will execute all 

authorized conveyances, contracts or other obligations in the name of the Fund except 

where required by law to be otherwise signed and executed and except where the signing 

and execution is expressly delegated by the Directors to some other person.   

 The Executive Director shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.  The Executive 

Director may employ staff and hire consultants as necessary with the approval of the 

14



 

5 
 

200136219.1 44881/170027 

Board.  The Board shall determine compensation for the Executive Director and staff and 

shall approve contracts under this Section 6. 

 

 The Executive Director shall display on the Fund internet website information 

relevant to the public, as defined by the Board, concerning the Fund’s operations and 

efficiencies, as well as the Board’s assessments of those activities. 

 

 The Executive Director shall do all of the following: 

 

(a) Review and certify external auditor reports. 

(b) Make external auditor reports available to the Board and to the 

general public. 

(c) Develop and implement corrective actions to address weaknesses 

identified in an audit report. 

Section 7. The Secretary.  The Secretary will attend meetings of the Board of 

Directors and record or cause to be recorded the minutes of all proceedings in a book to 

be kept for that purpose.  The Secretary will give or cause to be given notice of all 

meetings of the Board of Directors for which notice may be required and will perform 

any other duties prescribed by the Directors. 

Section 8. The Treasurer.  The Treasurer will oversee the financial activities 

of the Fund.  The Treasurer will perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and 

other administrative duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.  All books, 

papers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind belonging to the Fund 

which are in the Treasurer’s possession or under his or her control will be returned to the 

Fund at the time of his or her death, resignation or removal from office. 

ARTICLE IV 

Committees 

Section 1. Executive and Compensation Committee.  The Board of Directors 

shall establish an Executive and Compensation Committee consisting of the elected 

officers of the Board.  Minutes of the Executive and Compensation Committee meetings 

will be made available to the public.  The Executive and Compensation Committee, 

subject to those limitations as may be required by law or imposed by resolution of the 

Board of Directors, may make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the 

business and affairs of the Fund, but shall not conduct the business that the board may 

perform.   

The Executive and Compensation Committee shall review staff performance and 

make recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect to compensation and 

benefits to be paid to the Fund’s staff and personnel.  Notwithstanding anything 

contained in this Section 1 to the contrary, the Board of Directors will be responsible for 

approving compensation and benefits.    

15



 

6 
 

200136219.1 44881/170027 

Section 2. Audit Committee.  The Board shall appoint from its members an 

Audit Committee consisting of no fewer than 3 members.  The audit committee will 

contract with an independent auditing firm to provide an annual financial audit in 

accordance with applicable auditing standards. 

 The Audit Committee will insure that the Fund will keep an accurate accounting 

of all activities, receipts, and expenditures and annually submit to the Board, the 

Governor, the Senate and House of Representatives appropriations committees, and the 

Senate and House of Representatives standing committee on health policy a report 

regarding those accountings. 

 

 The Audit Committee will establish and maintain a system of financial 

accounting, controls, audits, and reports.  The Board annually shall have an audit of the 

Fund conducted by an independent public accountant firm, and the auditor’s audit report 

and findings shall be submitted to the Board.  The expense of an audit required under this 

subsection is considered a reasonable administrative cost of the Fund. 

 

Section 3. Governance Committee.  The Board shall appoint a Governance 

Committee to review and make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding 

matters of the Fund’s governance, including its Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, 

committee structure, and policies and procedures.    

Section 4. Other Committees.  The Board of Directors may designate other 

committees as deemed appropriate.  The committees will have the authority as delegated 

to them by the Board of Directors.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, all committees shall 

be advisory in nature and may not transact the business of the board.   

Section 5. Procedure.  All committees, and each member thereof, will serve at 

the pleasure of the Board of Directors.  Except as provided in the law, the Board of 

Directors will have the power at any time to increase or decrease the number of members 

of any committee, to fill vacancies thereon, to change any member thereof, and to change 

the functions or terminate the existence of any committee.  Regular meetings of any 

committee may be held in the same manner provided in these Bylaws for meetings of the 

Board of Directors, and a majority of any committee will constitute a quorum at the 

meeting.   

ARTICLE V 

Indemnification 

Section 1. Indemnification.  The Fund will, to the fullest extent now or 

hereafter permitted by law, indemnify any Director or officer of the Fund (and, to the 

extent provided in a resolution of the Board of Directors or by contract, may indemnify 

any volunteer, employee or agent of the Fund) who was or is a party to or threatened to 

be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding by 

reason of the fact that the person is or was a Director, officer, volunteer, employee or 

agent of the Fund, or is or was serving at the request of the Fund as a director, trustee, 

officer, partner, volunteer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint 

16



 

7 
 

200136219.1 44881/170027 

venture, trust or other enterprise, whether for profit or not for profit, against expenses 

including attorneys’ fees (which expenses may be paid by the Fund in advance of a final 

disposition of the action, suit or proceeding as provided by law), judgments, penalties, 

fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the person in 

connection with the action, suit or proceeding if the person acted (or refrained from 

acting) in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not 

opposed to the best interests of the Fund, and with respect to any criminal action or 

proceeding, if the person had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was 

unlawful. 

Section 2. Rights to Continue.  This indemnification will continue as to a 

person who has ceased to be a Director or officer of the Fund.  Indemnification may 

continue as to a person who has ceased to be a volunteer, employee or agent of the Fund 

to the extent provided in a resolution of the Board of Directors or in any contract between 

the Fund and the person.  Any indemnification of a person who was entitled to 

indemnification after such person ceased to be a Director, officer, volunteer, employee or 

agent of the Fund will inure to the benefit of the heirs and personal representatives of that 

person. 

ARTICLE VI 

Miscellaneous 

Section 1. Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the Fund will end on the last day of 

December. 

Section 2. Amendments.  These Bylaws may be amended or repealed by the 

affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors of the Fund then in office. 

Section 3. Loans and Guarantees.  The Fund will not provide loans to or 

guarantee obligations of an officer or Director of the Fund, unless expressly permitted 

under State law. 

 

17



MICHIGAN HEALTH ENDOWMENT FUND 
 

OPEN MEETINGS 
 

RULES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 
I. Meetings of the Board of Directors 

All meetings of the Board of Directors of Michigan Health Endowment Fund 
(“MHEF”) shall be held in compliance with Public Act 4 of 2013 (the “Act”) and 
these rules.  The business that a board may perform shall be conducted at a 
meeting of the Board that is held in Michigan, is open to the public, and is held in 
a place that is available to the general public.  At least 10 days and not more than 
60 days before a meeting, the board shall provide public notice of its meeting at 
its principal office and on its internet website. The board shall include in the 
public notice of its meeting the address where board minutes may be inspected by 
the public.  The business that a board may perform means formal meetings of the 
Board in which the Board transacts business of the Board by voting.  Meetings or 
forums where Board members gather information and discuss policy, but do not 
vote, are not formal meetings. 

 
II. Committees 

As further provided in MHEF’s bylaws, committees shall be advisory in nature 
and may not transact the business of the Board.  Committee meetings are not 
formal meetings of the Board and are not required to be open meetings, except in 
the discretion of the Committee Chair.   
 

III. Meeting Materials 

At the time of posting a Notice of a Board Meeting, MHEF shall post on its 
website relevant materials to be considered by the Board at the meeting, if 
available.  Hard copies of board meeting materials will be available to members 
of the general public at the meeting.   

   
IV. Minutes 

Minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors and of committees shall be 
prepared by the Secretary and/or a designee, in accordance with the Act.  Board 
and committee minutes shall be open to public inspection, and MHEF shall make 
the minutes available at the office address designated on the public notice of the 
meeting.  MHEF shall make copies of the minutes available to the public at the 
reasonable estimated cost for printing and copying.  Board and committee minutes 
shall include the date, time and place of the meeting, members who are present 

18



and absent, board decisions made at a meeting open to the public and all roll call 
votes taken at the meeting.   
 
Minutes shall be submitted to the Board or committee for approval at the next 
regular meeting after the meeting to which the minutes refer and will be open to 
public inspection as provided above after their approval.   
 
The Secretary or designee may audiotape a Board meeting to aid in the 
preparation of minutes of the meeting.  Once the meeting minutes have been 
approved by MHEF, the audiotape of the meeting shall be destroyed. 
 

V. Conduct of Meetings 

A. Meetings to be public 

1. All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, and 
members of the general public shall have a reasonable opportunity 
to be heard in accordance with these rules, except that all or part of 
a meeting may be closed to the public in accordance with the Act. 

2. All non-closed meetings of the Board shall be open to the media, 
freely subject to recording by radio, television or photographic 
services at any time, provided that such arrangements do not 
interfere with the orderly conduct of the meetings.   

3. One or more Directors may participate in a meeting of Directors by 
conference telephone or other means of remote communication by 
which all persons participating in the meeting may communicate 
with each other; provided that at least one Director is physically 
present at the site of the open meeting which is available to the 
general public so that members of the public may participate in 
person. 

B. Agenda 

Each meeting shall proceed pursuant to an agenda prepared in advance of the 
meeting by the Chairperson or a designee, with the following order of business: 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Public Comment 

5. Approval of Minutes of Prior Meeting(s) 

19



6. Other Business 

7. Adjournment 

 
Dates of future scheduled meetings will be identified on the agenda. 
 
Consideration of other specific items of business may take place at such point in 
the meeting as the Board may determine, and shall be listed on the meeting 
agenda. 
 
The agenda shall be distributed to Board members in advance of the meeting. 
 
C. Quorum and Voting 

Six members of the Board constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at 
Board meetings.  In the absence of a quorum, a lesser number may adjourn any 
meeting to a later time or date with appropriate public notice.  An affirmative vote 
of five board members is necessary for official action of the Board. 
 
D. Presiding Officer 

The presiding officer shall be responsible for enforcing these rules of procedure 
and for enforcing orderly conduct at meetings.  The Chairperson will ordinarily 
act as presiding officer.  The Board shall appoint one of its members Vice-
Chairperson, who shall preside in the absence of the Chair.  In the absence of both 
the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairperson, the remaining Board members shall 
elect one of their number to preside. 
 
E. Disorderly Conduct 

The presiding officer may call to order any person who is being disorderly by 
speaking out of order or otherwise disrupting the proceedings, failing to be 
germane, speaking longer than the allotted time or speaking vulgarities.  Such 
person shall be seated until the presiding officer determines whether the person is 
in order.   
 
If the person so engaged in presentation is called out of order, he or she shall not 
be permitted to continue to speak at the same meeting except by express leave of 
the Board.  If the person shall continue to be disorderly and disrupt the meeting, 
the presiding officer may order the removal of the person from the meeting by law 
enforcement personnel or other persons as appropriate.  No person shall be 
removed from a public hearing except for an actual breach of the peace 
committed at the meeting. 
 

VI. Closed Meetings. 

20



A. Purpose 

Closed meetings may be held only for the reasons authorized in the Act. 
 
B. Calling a closed meeting 

The Board by roll call vote of all Board members elected may call a closed 
session.  The roll call vote and purpose(s) for calling the meeting shall be entered 
into the minutes of the open part of the meeting at which the vote is taken. 
 
C. Minutes of closed meeting 

 
A separate set of minutes shall be taken by the Secretary or designee at the closed 
session.  These minutes will be retained by the Secretary, shall not be available to 
the public, and shall only be disclosed if required by a civil action.  These minutes 
may be destroyed one year and one day after approval of the minutes of the 
regular meeting at which the closed session was approved. 
 

VII. Discussion and voting 

A. Conduct of discussion 

The presiding officer shall preserve order and decorum.  The presiding officer, at 
his or her discretion, may permit any person to address the Board during its 
deliberations.   
 
B. Voting Method 

 The Board shall take action by way of motions.  No motion may be acted upon 
until it has been duly seconded by a Board member.  The vote on motions shall be 
by “yes” or “no,” and will be taken by voice vote or, upon the request of any 
Board member or the discretion of the presiding officer, a roll call vote, with 
names called alphabetically.  Following each vote, the chair shall announce that 
the motion carried or failed by a vote of ___ affirmative votes to ___ negative 
votes.  The minutes shall indicate whether a motion passed or failed.  At the 
discretion of the chairperson, Board members may be given the privilege of 
explaining for the record any vote. 

 
 A Board member voting in the majority on an issue may move for a 

reconsideration of the vote on that question at that meeting or the next succeeding 
meeting of the Board.  When a motion to reconsider fails, it cannot be renewed. 

 
VIII. Citizen Participation 

21



The following rules govern statements by members of the public during the 
periods of Board meetings reserved for such comments or in which such 
comments are permitted: 

 
A. The presiding officer shall recognize members of the public who indicate 

a desire to address the Board.  Where a large number of speakers is 
expected, a sign-up system may be employed to insure that all are 
provided with the opportunity to speak.   

B. No individual’s comment shall exceed three minutes without the express 
permission of the presiding officer.  If an individual is speaking on behalf 
of an organization, such individual may speak for up to five minutes, but 
no other representative of such organization will be recognized.  

C. Each speaker shall begin his or her comments by identifying himself or 
herself by name and address. 

D. Individuals addressing the Board shall take into consideration and be 
governed by the rules of common courtesy.  The presiding officer may 
terminate the comments of a person who violates such rules.   

E. Public comments, including questions, should be addressed to the 
presiding officer.  Board members may question or respond to speakers, 
but are not obligated to do so.  The presiding officer may, but is not 
obligated to, call upon MHEF staff, employees or officers, if present, to 
respond to a question or comment from a member of the public, or may 
refer such questions or comments to MHEF staff, employees or officers 
for consideration.   

IX. Miscellaneous 

A. Amendment of rules 

 The Board may alter or amend these rules at any time by a vote of the 
Board. 

 
B. Suspension of rules 

 These rules may be suspended for a specified portion of a meeting by the 
vote of the Board, except that Board actions shall conform to state statutes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

22



Michigan Health Endowment Fund  
Board Meeting 

Friday, November 21, 2014  
The Salvation Army Ray & Joan Kroc Corps Community Center 

2500 South Division Avenue SW, Grand Rapids, Michigan 49507 
 

Meeting Minutes 
 
Call to order 
The board meeting of the Michigan Health Endowment Fund was called to order at 9:07 a.m. by 
Chairman Robert Fowler. 

Roll call 
Quorum established based on the presence of the following Board Members: 

Board Members present: 
Rob Fowler 
Sue Jandernoa 
Keith Pretty 
Michael Williams 
 
Participating by phone: 
Lynn Alexander  
Tim Damschroder 
Cindy Estrada 
Marge Robinson 
 
Others present: 
Geralyn Lasher 
Genevieve Otis 
Laurie Solotorow 
Duane Tarnacki 
 
Approval of agenda 
Chairman Fowler approves the agenda.  
 
Review and adoption of the minutes from the previous meeting 
Board Member Jandernoa moves to approve the minutes from October 20, 2014, and November 
3, 2014, board meetings.  Board Member Alexander seconds.  Motion passes by a vote of eight 
to zero. 

Public comment: 
Beka Guluma from Public Policy Associates reads a letter addressed to Board Chair Fowler and 
Board Members.  Board Members thanked the staff of Public Policy Associates for their 
services. 

Learning session: 

23



Dr. Robert Corey Waller, physician, Spectrum Health, presents to the Board about high utilizers 
of the health care system. 

Committee reports 
 

I. Executive and Compensation Committee 
 
Board Chair Fowler states that the board continues to improve reporting financial 
information and is currently looking to hire an outside bookkeeping firm.  
 
Board Chair Fowler discussed the option of allocating funds from 2014 to 2015 for 
the spending account or to permanent endowment. 

 
II. Audit Committee:   

 
Board Member Pretty reported that there are three firms scheduled to interview on 
January 5, 2015. 
 
Board Member Pretty reported that the selected firm will audit 2014 activities in early 
2015. 

 
III. Governance Committee:  

 
Duane Tarnacki reviewed the revision to the Open Meetings Policy relating to voting 
and added a provision that the public notice must go out not less than 10 days but no 
more than 60 days. 
 
Board Member Williams moved to approve the Open Meetings Policy. Board 
Member Pretty seconds.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Board Member Williams moved to approve the Acceptance of Benefits from Vendors 
or Grantseekers Policy.  Board Member Pretty seconds.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Board Member Williams motioned to approve the Conflict of Interest Review 
Procedure.  Board member Alexander seconds.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Board Member Williams motioned to approve the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 
Policy.  Board Member Jandernoa seconds.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Board Member Williams motioned to approve the Travel Reimbursement Policy.  
Board Member Pretty seconds.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Board Member Williams motioned to approve the Roberts Rules of Order Guide.  
Member Alexander seconds.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
IV. Grantmaking Committee: 

 
Easter Seals-Michigan Inc. 

24



Board Member Jandernoa stated the committee received information on ensuring that 
Easter Seals-Michigan can sustain and manage the grant money they requested and 
their plan to have appropriate staff hired.   

 
The Grantmaking Committee recommends $4.1 million to support this program. 
 
Michigan Primary Care Association 
The Grantmaking Committee recommends additional discussions and one-on-one 
collaborations.   
 
Board Member Jandernoa reported that revisions have been submitted by the six 
additional applications and will be reviewed at the December meeting. 
 
Board Member Jandernoa reported that the Grantmaking Committee will convene on 
Dec. 9th for discussion and a report at the Dec. 17th meeting. 
 

V.       Board Member Williams made a motion to go into closed session to discuss the hiring 
of a Chief Executive Officer and offer to Chief Operating Officer per the statute.  
Board Member Pretty seconds.  The Board voted on going into closed session: 

 
Lynn Alexander- affirmative 
Tim Damschroder- affirmative 
Rob Fowler- affirmative 
Sue Jandernoa- affirmative 
Keith Pretty- affirmative 
Michael Williams- affirmative 
 
Cindy Estrada-  not present to vote. 
Jim Murray-  not present to vote. 
Marge Robinson- not present to vote. 
 
Motion passes by a vote of six to zero. 

              
 

CLOSED SESSION 
              
 
Reconvene Open Meeting 
 
Adjournment 
Board Member Jandernoa moves to adjourn the meeting. Board Member Williams seconds. 
Motion passes by a vote of six to zero.  Meeting adjourns at 11:45 a.m. 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Secretary of the meeting 

 

25



Michigan Health Endowment Fund
201 Townsend Street, Lansing, MI 48913

Board of Directors

Robert Fowler

Chairperson

Lynn Alexander

Vice Chairperson

Chemical Bank 7,050,148.37$     

Timothy Damschroder

Treasurer Huntington Investments

     Investment - At Fair Market Value 89,737,195.02     

Cindy Estrada      Accrued Interest Earned - Receivable from Huntington 358,104.79          

Secretary Total Value of Huntington Investments 90,095,299.81     

Susan Jandernoa Prepaid Insurance Expense 13,535.00            

Keith Pretty Total Assets 97,158,983.18$  

James Murray

Marge Robinson Liabilities

Accounts Payable 164,079.46$        

Michael Williams

Net Assets

Interim Executive Director      Unrestricted Net Assets 76,994,903.72     

Geralyn Lesher      Restricted Net Assets 20,000,000.00     

Total Net Assets 96,994,903.72     

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 97,158,983.18$  

MHEF Statement of Financial Position

November 30, 2014

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

www.healthendowmentfund.org   201 Townsend, Lansing, MI  48913

26



Michigan Health Endowment Fund
201 Townsend Street, Lansing, MI 48913

Board of Directors

Robert Fowler

Chairperson

Lynn Alexander Current Month Year-to-date

Vice Chairperson Operating Activities:

REVENUE

Timothy Damschroder Funds Contributed from Blue Cross Blue Shield -$                         100,000,000.00$   

Treasurer

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cindy Estrada Professional services 7,884.42                  1,075,944.68          

Secretary Grant expenses 2,000,000.00          2,000,000.00          

Memberships -                            24,650.00               

Susan Jandernoa Meetings and facilities 169.20                     20,381.00               

Supplies -                            164.80                     

Keith Pretty Postage and shipping -                            1,092.11                 

Bank charges 82.00                       484.00                     

James Murray Filing fees -                            850.00                     

Insurance expense 1,353.50                  2,707.00                 

Marge Robinson

Total Operating Expenses 2,009,489.12          3,126,273.59          

Michael Williams

Net Operating Income (Loss) (2,009,489.12)         96,873,726.41       

Interim Executive Director

Geralyn Lesher

Investment Activities:

Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments (25,339.50)              (36,007.20)              

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments (106,014.77)            (1,447,098.95)        

Interest earned - includes paid and accrued 146,482.53             1,603,419.64          

Dividends 110.97                     863.82                     

Net Income (Loss) from Investment Activity 15,239.23                121,177.31             

Change in Net Assets (1,994,249.89)$       96,994,903.72$     

MHEF Statement of Activities

as of November 30, 2014

www.healthendowmentfund.org   201 Townsend, Lansing, MI  48913

27



MICHIGAN HEALTH ENDOWMENT FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 
2014 ALLOCATION TO SPENDABLE ACCOUNT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Fund’s Spending and Endowment Fund Policy allows the Fund to 
expend a portion of the money contributed to it in an amount up to the Maximum Spending 
Allowance which for year 1 is 80%;  

WHEREAS, the Fund received total contributions in 2014 of $100 million; 

WHEREAS, for year 1 the Board has determined a budget range for spending of between 
$25 million and $40 million; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that $20 million be allocated to the Endowment Fund for 
purposes of meeting and complying with the Act’s Accumulated Principal Goal. 

RESOLVED, that the Board has reviewed the amounts spent for the year to date and the 
Fund has not spent the Maximum Spending Allowance, therefore, the Board hereby allocates to 
the “Spendable Account” the remaining amount of the Maximum Spending Allowance to be 
made available for spending in the balance of the current year and future years.   

 

28



 
MHEF WORK PLAN 

 

 
 
I. Investments   
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Short-term investment 

options 
1. Review short-term investment options 
2. Prepare recommendations for Board 

review/approval 

Investment committee May Approve short-term 
options at May meeting - 
DONE 

  Ensure appropriate 
composition of 
Investment Committee 

1. Chair/Exec reviews committee 
composition to ensure that 
endowment investment is represented 

2. Appoint outside individuals with 
endowment experience to committee? 

Rob/Tim May – June Approve new investment 
committee members (if 
appropriate) - DONE 

  Review 
responsibilities under 
UPMIFA and 
implications of 
perpetuity 

1.  Review committee responsibilities as 
outlined in charter and ensure that 
they align with UPMIFA 

2.  Develop initial spending policy 

Investment committee/ 
Legal counsel 

June/July Approve spending policy 
- DONE 

  Chief Investment 
Officer 

1. Consider hiring CFO/CIO or an 
outsourced CIO 

2. Consider role of new CEO in hiring 
of the CFO/CIO 

3. Consider Woodrow Tyler, who 
helped develop the UAW VEBA as a 
possible interim CIO 

4. Make recommendation to the Board 

Investment committee June/July Board reviews rationale 
and makes decision 
regarding hiring vs. 
outsourcing 
DONE – Board decided 
at 6.16.14 meeting to 
hire a CFO with CIO 
experience. 

  Audit RFP 1. Prepare and approve RFP for MHEF 
auditor - DONE 

2. Develop list of prospective audit 
firms and manage solicitation process 
- DONE 

3. Review proposals - DONE 
4. Identify firm(s) for interviews - DONE 
5. Recommend firm for Board approval 

Audit committee August- 
November 

Audit committee to 
interview firms January 5, 
2015. 

29



2 
 

 

 
I. Investments   
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  CFO Search 1. Create job description for CFO - 

DONE 
2. Provide draft job description to the 

Kittleman firm - DONE 
3. Support recruitment process as 

necessary 

Investment 
committee/Kittleman 

July – October Board approves CFO job 
description at July 
meeting - DONE 

  Interview 
individual(s) for CFO 
position 

1. Identify candidates for CFO position 
2. Provide candidates to incoming CEO 

for review 
3. Make recommendation to the Board 

Investment committee October- 
December 

Board approves hire at 
November or December 
meeting 

 
 
 

II. Mission/Strategy   
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Conduct Board 

member interviews 
Schedule and conduct interviews with 
Board members 

Board members May/June DONE 

  Summarize feedback Prepare summary of gathered information Board members (where 
clarification is necessary) 

Early June DONE 

  Meet with Exec 
Committee 

Discuss results of survey and prepare 
draft mission statement 

Executive and 
Compensation committee 

Mid-June DONE 

  Approve mission 
statement 

Present proposed mission statement to 
board for discussion and approval 

Rob June Board 
meeting 

Board approves mission 
statement - DONE 

  Begin development of 
grantmaking strategies 

1. Based on approved mission, develop 
initial draft of strategies 

2. Begin development of a process for 
each grantmaking strategy 

Rob/Geralyn/Sue July Broad strategy agreed to 
by team - DONE 

   Executive & 1. Identify origin, values, etc. and 
develop broader more defined mission 
statement 

2. Present to Board for review/approval 

Executive & 
Compensation committee 

August E&C Committee 
approved values and 
goal and will present to 
board at September 
Board meeting - DONE 

Compensation 
Committee revisits 
broader mission 
statement 

30



 
MHEF WORK PLAN 

 

 
III. Grantmaking  
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Present revised paper 

detailing Board 
discussion for 
grantmaking 

Prepare paper outlining grantmaking 
decisions/assumptions 

Sue May Discussed at the May 19 
Board meeting - DONE 

  Revise 2014 grant 
making plan 

1. Using feedback from May and June 
Board meetings, develop draft plan for 
2014 grantmaking 

2. Review plan with grantmaking 
committee 

Grantmaking committee July Grantmaking committee 
revised and approved 
strategy on July 7. 
Recommending to Board 
for approval at July 21 
meeting. - DONE 

  Implement 2014 
grantmaking plan. 

Based on plan approved by Board: 
1. Determine list of prospective 

applicants - DONE 
2. Cull list based on objective criteria 

related to grantmaking goals - DONE 
3. Conduct structured discussions with 

invitees 
4. Draft formal RFP to be sent to invited 

applicants - DONE 
5. Review applications - DONE 
6. Recommend funding for strongest 

proposals - DONE 

Grantmaking committee July-October Four grants awarded, 
seven in process. 

  Develop 2015 
grantmaking strategy 
and program 

Based on plan approved by Board: 
1. Orient grantmaking committee to 

strategic approach to successful 
grantmaking - DONE 

2. Work with grantmaking committee to 
develop focus areas, goals, processes, 
and MHEF role 

3. Develop recommendation to Board for 
2015 grantmaking 

Grantmaking committee  
 

Need to select a CEO 
in order to do this 
properly.   
 
Potential of extending 
short term contract 
with Neithercut.  

31



4 
 

 

 
IV. Listening and Communications   
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Meet with possible 

contractors for 
listening sessions 

1. Define possible approaches for 
listening session(s) 

2. Outline the activities, timing, and 
proposed outcome(s) 

Geralyn May/June DONE 

  Solicit proposals Ask for proposals from a limited number 
of potential contractors 

Geralyn June DONE 

  Select a contactor Prepare recommendation to Board Geralyn June/July Board approves plan at 
June Board meeting. 
DONE 

  Develop plan for 
listening tour 

1. Develop goals, strategy, approach - 
DONE 

2. Create MHEF communications points - 
DONE 

3. Identify communities, partners, venues 
- DONE 

4. Schedule sessions/engage Board 
members - DONE 

5. Market each session - DONE 
6. Conduct sessions - DONE 
7. Analyze results/present to Board 

Geralyn/Public Sector 
Consultants 

July - 
December 

Public Sector 
Consultants to 
deliver report by 
end of 
December for 
January review.  

 
 
 

V. Staffing/ ED Search   
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Contract with 

Kittleman 
Develop and review contract Geralyn/Clark Hill May Approve contract at May 

19 board meeting - 
DONE 

  Create position 
description for CEO 

Approve Kittleman’s position description Rob/Geralyn/Kittleman June Approval of CEO 
position description - 
DONE 

  Determine employee 
benefits 

Identify benefits for MHEF CEO and 
implications for staff benefits 

Rob/Executive & 
Compensation committee 

September/ 
October 

Utilize Clark Hill for this 
process.   

  Staffing plan Develop tentative staffing plan for MHEF Executive & 
Compensation committee 

October/ 
November 

 

  Create job descriptions Create job descriptions outlining roles and 
responsibilities of staff 

Executive & 
Compensation committee 

October/ 
November 

 

32



 
MHEF WORK PLAN 

 

 
V. Staffing/ ED Search   
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Human Resources 

manual 
Develop an initial Human Resources 
policies/employee manual for review by 
incoming CEO 

Rob/Executive & 
Compensation committee 

October/ 
November 

TBD 

  Review tentative 
staffing plan with 
incoming CEO 

Present plan to incoming CEO, revise as 
appropriate. 

Incoming CEO/Executive 
& Compensation 
committee 

November TBD 

 

 
 

VI. Governance   
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Committee charges 

established and 
approved 

Define committees and appoint Board 
members to lead/participate in 
committees 

Michael May Approved at May 19 
meeting DONE 

  Job descriptions for 
officers and Board 
members 

Create/finalize job descriptions for 
officers and Board members 

Geralyn/NPA Early June Board approves at June 
16 meeting DONE 

  Committee Chairs and 
members appointed 

New committees begin operation Committee chairs June –July All will have met at least 
once by end of July 
DONE 

  Policies and 
procedures for MHEF 

1. Identify necessary policies and 
procedures for MHEF operations and 
governance 

2. Develop policies/procedures for review 
and approval 

Rob/Geralyn/Governance 
committee/Clark Hill 

June – August 
(initial) 

 
September + 
(ongoing) 

Board to approve policy 
manual in September - 
DONE 

  Meeting minutes taken 
at Board and 
committee meetings 

1. Board Secretary takes and publishes 
meeting minutes for Board meeting 

2. If requested, PPA team takes and 
publishes meeting minutes for 
committee meetings.  Otherwise, the 
committee Chair arranges for minutes 
to be taken. 

Rob/Board Secretary/ 
Committee chairs 

Ongoing Approval of minutes at 
the next meeting of the 
committee or via e-mail 
prior to meeting 

33



6 
 

 

 
VII. Administration  
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Attorney retained Interim ED and Board Chair recommend 

a law firm to the Board 
Geralyn/Rob June Board approves law firm 

selection at June meeting 
DONE 

  Accounting  Provide accounting support until an 
accounting firm is retained 

Geralyn/PPA July/August Bookkeeper engaged 
through December. 

  Consultation on the 
strategic positioning of 
the MHEF in 
philanthropy and 
health 

1. Help develop goals for the MHEF’s 
relationships and roles in the industry 

2. Identify opportunities to achieve the 
goals (events, meetings, etc.). 
Memberships in Council of Michigan 
Foundations, Grantmakers in Health, 
Council on Foundations. 

Geralyn/Rob Ongoing Board actions as 
Necessary. 
Responsibility of CEO 

  Support for Board and 
committees to develop 
and maintain 
momentum toward 
achieving their goals 

1. Assist Chairs/interim ED with 
development of agendas, logistics, 
meeting support, and follow up 

2. Meetings include:  Board planning 
sessions, Board meetings, weekly 
Board information calls, committee 
meetings, weekly leadership updates, 
and other meetings as necessary 

3. Support between meetings includes: 
background research, writing 
informational pieces, consultation with 
group chairs, and creating summaries 

Geralyn/Rob/ 
Committee chairs 

Ongoing Five committees 
Operating 
Responsibility of CEO 

  Office space 1. Identify possible locations for MHEF 
offices - DONE 

2. Create list of all office services, 
systems, supplies, hardware, and 
software needed for office - DONE 

3. Prepare temporary office space and 
other needs for CEO start 

4. Review office space options with CEO 
and solidify arrangements 

Geralyn/Rob/Clark Hill July/August/ 
September 

 
 
 
 
September/ 
October 

 
November 

Board reviews 
Recommendations 
 
Lease is ready to sign but 
may want to determine 
true need. 

 
 
 

34



 
MHEF WORK PLAN 

 

 
VII. Administration  
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Computers and 

software 
1. Determine appropriate number of 

workstations 
2. Arrange for network installation 
3. Identify appropriate equipment (e.g., 

computers, monitors, printers, etc.) 

Geralyn/PPA November  

  Office furniture and 
equipment 

Determine number of workspaces and 
necessary furniture items 

Geralyn/PPA November  

  Grantmaking software 1. Identify grantmaking software options 
(e.g., Foundant, GIFTS, etc.) 

2. Select grantmaking software 

Geralyn/Grantmaking 
committee 

October/ 
November 

 

  Communications firm 
identified and hired 

1. Identify communications and branding 
firms - DONE 

2. Contract with communications firm 
3. Contract with branding firm 
4. Develop branding (e.g., logo, etc.) for 

MHEF – Sample logos created 
5. Develop communication strategy 
6. Develop branding 

Geralyn/Executive & 
Compensation committee 

August/ 
September 

 

 
VIII. Learning  
Activities Tasks MHEF Staff/Board Timeline Board Decision/Status 
  Learning plan revised 1. Review notes of Board discussion 

2. Identify priority topics 
3. Identify potential presenters 
4. Develop other learning opportunities 
5. Draft plan 
6. Present to Board for review/approval 

Geralyn/Rob May/June Board reviews/approves 
at June 16 meeting 
DONE 

  Present 2014 learning 
opportunities 

1. Present 5-6 opportunities at each Board 
meeting, such as: 
• Listening sessions 
• Presentations 
• Readings 
• Site visits 
• Conferences 
• Websites/videos 

Geralyn/Rob/PPA/ 
Governance Committee 

Ongoing Responsibility of the 
CEO. 

 

35





Description Percentage

Fidelity MMKT 16,010,697.05$                 18%

Commercial Paper 34,988,550.00$                 40%

Corporate Bonds 33,387,700.89$                 38%

Government Agency Debt -$                                      0%

Government Agency MBS -$                                      0%

Asset-Backed Securities 4,150,247.08$                    5%

Total 88,537,195.02$                 100%

 

0.57%

0.35

 

 

Description Percentage

Daily 16,010,697.05$                 18%

1 - 3 Months 43,458,131.38$                 48%

 4 - 6 Months 12,285,833.98$                 14%

7 - 9 Months 4,375,599.00$                    5%

10 - 12 Months 6,405,605.63$                    7%

12 - 16 Months 4,643,301.50$                    5%

16+ Months 2,515,232.00$                    3%

Total 89,694,400.54$                 100%

Weighted Average Life in Years / Duration

Maturity Schedule

Summary of Investments 

MI Health Endowment Fund 11-30-2014

Fixed Income Diversification

Portfolio Analysis
Description

Weighted Average Yield

39%

38%

5%

Fixed Income Diversification

Fidelity MMKT

Commercial Paper

Corporate Bonds

Government Agency Debt

Government Agency MBS

Asset-Backed Securities

 $-

 $5,000,000.00

 $10,000,000.00

 $15,000,000.00

 $20,000,000.00

 $25,000,000.00

 $30,000,000.00

 $35,000,000.00

 $40,000,000.00

 $45,000,000.00

 

37



http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ZBuVcd6nzkEBGfsloSo5rYJ-STQoJuBBLMmzNZDZ_qP49fY_R36eFX7iaeWvtx9kMUXci-ZXJEjLLCGlCWro8YygVhLr0yng0hgKRL7qTx081B2SdkJNeeYmv9MFVsfXjvCv0l1KAShX70IjTm1jJ3cm3qHlyGfa2H5BFRhxkjMWNDm2Q0rhBA5PyU6H2aIzuTUqDPzzcnQ=&c=&ch=
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ZBuVcd6nzkEBGfsloSo5rYJ-STQoJuBBLMmzNZDZ_qP49fY_R36eFX7iaeWvtx9kSSzu2JogE8s7aOnR9q4jFDalg5zMF0oT62uovlVtjSve52UYqVhh4ad02BOslJiSmIqYV3XpbvptIMsa4qD3XQX9pjONnLrm3_vUHNvFgZlcJUTeNZT_jQ==&c=&ch=


mailto:scuddington@michiganfoundations.org?subject=FOTH%20Question


 
 40


	A9R1CC5.tmp
	Local Disk
	C:\Users\lasherg\Desktop\CMF.html


	ADPB96F.tmp
	I. UMeetings of the Board of Directors
	II. UCommittees
	III. UMeeting Materials
	IV. UMinutes
	V. UConduct of Meetings
	A. UMeetings to be public
	1. All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, and members of the general public shall have a reasonable opportunity to be heard in accordance with these rules, except that all or part of a meeting may be closed to the public in accordance ...
	2. All non-closed meetings of the Board shall be open to the media, freely subject to recording by radio, television or photographic services at any time, provided that such arrangements do not interfere with the orderly conduct of the meetings.
	3. One or more Directors may participate in a meeting of Directors by conference telephone or other means of remote communication by which all persons participating in the meeting may communicate with each other; provided that at least one Director is...

	B. UAgenda
	1. Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Approval of Agenda
	4. Public Comment
	5. Approval of Minutes of Prior Meeting(s)
	6. Other Business
	7. Adjournment

	C. UQuorum and Voting
	D. UPresiding Officer
	E. UDisorderly Conduct

	VI. UClosed Meetings.
	A. UPurpose
	B. UCalling a closed meeting
	C. UMinutes of closed meeting

	VII. UDiscussion and voting
	A. UConduct of discussion
	B. UVoting Method

	VIII. UCitizen Participation
	A. The presiding officer shall recognize members of the public who indicate a desire to address the Board.  Where a large number of speakers is expected, a sign-up system may be employed to insure that all are provided with the opportunity to speak.
	B. No individual’s comment shall exceed three minutes without the express permission of the presiding officer.  If an individual is speaking on behalf of an organization, such individual may speak for up to five minutes, but no other representative of...
	C. Each speaker shall begin his or her comments by identifying himself or herself by name and address.
	D. Individuals addressing the Board shall take into consideration and be governed by the rules of common courtesy.  The presiding officer may terminate the comments of a person who violates such rules.
	E. Public comments, including questions, should be addressed to the presiding officer.  Board members may question or respond to speakers, but are not obligated to do so.  The presiding officer may, but is not obligated to, call upon MHEF staff, emplo...

	IX. UMiscellaneous
	A. UAmendment of rules
	B. USuspension of rules


	ADP1C86.tmp
	I. UMeetings of the Board of Directors
	II. UCommittees
	III. UMeeting Materials
	IV. UMinutes
	V. UConduct of Meetings
	A. UMeetings to be public
	1. All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, and members of the general public shall have a reasonable opportunity to be heard in accordance with these rules, except that all or part of a meeting may be closed to the public in accordance ...
	2. All non-closed meetings of the Board shall be open to the media, freely subject to recording by radio, television or photographic services at any time, provided that such arrangements do not interfere with the orderly conduct of the meetings.
	3. One or more Directors may participate in a meeting of Directors by conference telephone or other means of remote communication by which all persons participating in the meeting may communicate with each other; provided that at least one Director is...

	B. UAgenda
	1. Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Approval of Agenda
	4. Public Comment
	5. Approval of Minutes of Prior Meeting(s)
	6. Other Business
	7. Adjournment

	C. UQuorum and Voting
	D. UPresiding Officer
	E. UDisorderly Conduct

	VI. UClosed Meetings.
	A. UPurpose
	B. UCalling a closed meeting
	C. UMinutes of closed meeting

	VII. UDiscussion and voting
	A. UConduct of discussion
	B. UVoting Method

	VIII. UCitizen Participation
	A. The presiding officer shall recognize members of the public who indicate a desire to address the Board.  Where a large number of speakers is expected, a sign-up system may be employed to insure that all are provided with the opportunity to speak.
	B. No individual’s comment shall exceed three minutes without the express permission of the presiding officer.  If an individual is speaking on behalf of an organization, such individual may speak for up to five minutes, but no other representative of...
	C. Each speaker shall begin his or her comments by identifying himself or herself by name and address.
	D. Individuals addressing the Board shall take into consideration and be governed by the rules of common courtesy.  The presiding officer may terminate the comments of a person who violates such rules.
	E. Public comments, including questions, should be addressed to the presiding officer.  Board members may question or respond to speakers, but are not obligated to do so.  The presiding officer may, but is not obligated to, call upon MHEF staff, emplo...

	IX. UMiscellaneous
	A. UAmendment of rules
	B. USuspension of rules





